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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the year to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees’
report, and a directors’ report under company law.

The academy trust operates four primary, a junior and infant school for pupils aged 2 — 11 serving a catchment
area in Basildon, Essex. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 3044 (includes nursery pupils full and
part time) and had a roll of 3058 in the school census in October 2020.

Capacity Roll

" Lee Chapet Primary School ' 960 ] 1046
 Greensted Infant school 232 ] 215
Greensted Junior School 240 : 241
Northlands Primary School ' 720 634
The Phoenix Primary School 570 628
Ryedene Primary School 322 294
Total 3044 ) 3058

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The trustees of Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust.

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details.

Members’ Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

Directors’/Trustees’ Indemnities

The Charitable Company has Trustee liability insurance through Zurich Insurance which all the academies
subscribe to.

Method of Recruitment and. Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Members of the Academy Trust shall comprise: .

a. the members of the company on the date of the adoption of the articles (01 August 2011); and

b. any person appointed under Article {“The Members may agree by passing a special resolution to appoint
such additional Members as they think fit”) - provided that at any time the minimum number of Members shall
not be less than three. An employee of the Academy Trust cannot be a Member of the Academy Trust.

The Multi Academy Trust comprises the following from Lee Chapel Governing Body: the Headteacher, Chair,
Vice Chair, Governor and a Parent; Greensted Governing Body the Chair and a Parent, Phoenix, Northlands,
Ryedene and Greensted Infant School each schools Chair of Governors and independently 2 community
governors.

The Trust advertises local governing body and trust vacancies through Juniper Governor Services. New trustees
or members are voted onto the board at their meetings.
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Lee Chapel Academy’s Governing Body comprises the Head Teacher, two Staff Governors (who are employees of
Lee Chapel School & Nursery), two parent Governors and five Community Governors. The Articles of Association
require that there be a minimum of three Governors. The term is normally four years although the Governors can
resign at any time during this period.

Greensted Junior School Academy’s Governing Body comprises of the head teacher, two staff governors {(who are
employees of the Multi Academy Trust) three parent governors and two community governors. The term is normally
4 years although governors can resign at any time during this period.

The Phoenix Primary School & Nursery Governing Body comprises of the head teacher, one staff governor (who is
an employee of the Academy Trust) one parent governor and 5 co-opted governors. The term is normally 4 years
although governors can resign at any time during this period.

Ryedene Primary & Nursery School Governing Body comprises of the head teacher, two staff governors {(who are
employees of the Academy Trust) two parent governors and five co-opted governors. The term is normally 4 years
although governors can resign at any time during this period.

Northlands Primary School & Nursery Academy’s Governing Body comprises of the Head of School, two staff
governors {(who are employees of the Academy Trust), two parent governors and 3 co-opted governors

Greensted Infant School & Nursery’s Governing Body comprises of the headteacher, one staff governor {who are
employees of the Academy Trust), 3 parent governors and 5 co-opted governors. The term is normally 4 years
although governors can resign at any time during this period.

Parent Governors for all schools are elected by the parents of current pupils.
Staff Gavernors for all schools are elected by the staff currently employed by the school.

With regards to the appointment of Community Governors, the Governing body will ensure that consideration is
given to the skills mix of the Governors so that they can contribute fully ensure the Academy’s development.

Policies and. Procedures.Adopted for the Induction.and Tidining of Trustees & Governors

All the schools Governing Bodies subscribe to Juniper Education Services Ltd who run the Governor Induction
courses and new Governors details are provided to Juniper Education Services Ltd so that they can receive the
induction pack and the training courses details.

The training link Governor of the board receives additional training information which is forwarded to the Governors
by the Clerk in order that each Governor has the opportunity to attend appropriate training courses.

The Multi Academy Trust runs training evenings in conjunction with Juniper Education Services Ltd concentrating on
five specific subjects. All the governors are invited to attend the training sessions, which are held at the schools. The
training sessions for 2020/21 were reduced due to COVID and the remote session which did take place was
Safeguarding. :

Oiganisational Structure
The Directors are responsible for setting general Trust policy, approving budgets, monitoring the Academies,

budget monitoring and making major decisions about the direction of the Academy Trust, capital
expenditure and senior staff appointments.

The Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer and is responsible to the Board of Directors for the overall
performance of the Trust and its constituent schools. Local Governing Badies are responsible for the
strategic direction and financial oversight of their schools and holding their Headteacher to account for the
performance of the school.

Head teachers are responsible for the overall performance of their schools and meeting the objectives set
for them by their Local Governing Body and the CEO.

in line with the Trust’s scheme of delegation the academy trust board meets once a term and have an additional
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meeting to agree the budgets in the summer term. The Finance & Audit committee meet at least termly.

All local Governing Bodies meet at least once a term. The local Governing Bodies of each school may also have
established committees.

Each committee has Terms of Reference, which delegate some decisions to each committee from the board of
trustees. The local governing body meeting receives reports from the committees.

At the first local governing body meeting in the autumn term, the governors elect the chair & vice chair of the local
governing body and each of the committees if required.

The local Governing Body approves the draft plans and budgets presented by the head teacher. The Trusts Finance
& Audit committee review the budgets presented and recommend after rigarous questioning to the Board for
approval in the summer term. The local governing body monitor the budget and ensure that any decisions made
are within the powers delegated to them. Any financial agreements in excess of the committee’s fimits are
presented to the Trusts Finance & Audit committee and ultimately the board of trustees for approval.

The day to day running of the Academies is delegated to the Head teacher or head of school. The Multi Academy
Trust Accounting Officer as required by the Funding Agreement with the Department of Education is Lee Chapel
Primary School’s head teacher.

Arrangerents for setting pay'and remuneration of key management personiel

The trustees have delegated the responsibility of remuneration for key management personnel to the CEO / head teacher
of Lee Chapel, chair of the board and the individual chair of governors from the local governing body. All Head teachers’ pay
awards must be awarded and paid within the range for the size of the school (determined by the pupil numbers) as agreed
by the MAT Board of Directors. Decisions regarding performance related pay are made at the head teachers performance
review and recommendations are forwarded to the local governing body and the board of directors are informed. The local
Governing Body Chair and Vice Chair conduct the review for the Headteacher of Lee Chapel Primary School and Nursery as
her salary is exclusively funded by the school (the head teacher is not paid for her CEO role and does not receive any
remuneration from the MAT).

The CFO performance and pay review is conducted by the CEO and the chair of the board of Directors.
Directors/Trustees receive no pay or remuneration for acting as Directors/Trustees.

Trade union facility:time

The trust had no employees who were relevant union officials during the year..

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Lee Chapel Primary School Academy became Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust and the sponsor of Greensted lunior School
on 1% September 2012. On 1% September 2016, the following schools were sponsored: The Phoenix Primary School &
Nursery, Northlands Primary School & Nursery and Ryedene Primary & Nursery School. Lee Chapel Nursery joined the
trust on 1%t September 2016. On 1% September 2018, Greensted Infant School joined the trust.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The welfare of our staff is fundamental to our business and to ensuring the provision of an ‘Outstanding’ education
for our pupils. The Health and safety of all employees is important to us and we encourage and empower them to
take ownership and to report and raise any issues they encounter in this respect.

The Board agree common policies and practices and these are applied throughout the Trust. The head teachers
have regular meetings with the CEQO and these are communicated to the staff in the schools' weekly staff meeting
and the minutes are circulated to all employees following these meetings. Risk Assessments are regularly carried
out covering all aspects of the school's premises, staff and pupils to ensure a safe working environment. During the
COVID 19 pandemic these Risk Assessments plans have been reviewed regularly and any additional measures to
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mitigate the risk of virus transmission have been communicated to staff as their health and safety has been
paramount to ensuring that the schools could remain open.

The Trust has followed and implemented Government and Local Authority guidelines throughout the pandemic,
communicating these to staff and parents. Personal Protective Equipment has been provided, additional cleaning
and sanitisation products purchased and bubbles of pupils and staff maintained to reduce the risk of COVID19 virus
transmission.

The staff are represented at the local governing body meetings by both a teacher and a support staff member and
they may raise any issues brought to their attention by other staff and provide feedback. The financial position of
the school is discussed and staff are regularly made aware of their individual responsibility in ensuring the stability
of the finances at the 'school and ultimately the Trust.

The Trust policy is to treat disabled people on the same basis as all staff in relation to employment, career
development and training. Staff involvement in meeting the company’s aims is encouraged at all levels.

The Trust is committed to a policy of equal opportunities for all staff.

_Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the trust

The Trust has continued to use its existing suppliers where possible and pay them within timescales and earlier
where possible as per the Government directive throughout COVID19. The trust continues to operate on Best for
Value deals and this has been used to extend fixed contracts for up to 3 years to ensure a fixed deal has been
agreed in the current climate. The trust has negotiated new centralised contracts for energy, water and facilities
management to ensure it receives best value for money and all current contracts within the schools have been
centralised to ensure that all future reviews are completed at the same time.

Objectives and Activities

The Multi Academy Trust’s object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in
particular but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing schools {“the Academies”) offering a broad and balanced curriculum.

The principal aim of the Multi Academy Trust is to provide high quality learning that helps all children meet
their potential.

Further aims are:
e To provide an environment that enables children to learn and teachers to teach effectively
e Toidentify high achieving children and effectively support them to achieve their potential
e To provide equal opportunities for all to achieve

The Multi Academy Trust focused on the following objectives:

Lee Chapel Primary School
e Implement a robust catch-up and curriculum recovery action plan in order to teach to the gaps in
children’s knowledge and understanding and by so doing raise standards of achievement, progress
and attainment
e To continue to strengthen leadership at all levels across the school, ensuring that all are accountable
and responsible for
s Leaders and governors focus on consistently improving outcomes for disadvantaged pupils
e Ensure that much teaching over time in all Year Groups is outstanding and never less than
consistently good
To improve the attendance overall by all groups, especially the disadvantaged
To promote the well-being of staff and pupils '
To further expand and improve provision and outcomes for Nursery pupils
To further extend ITT provision, year on year increasing the numbers of trainee teachers

[RSVRISRGR T ——"
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To embed reading progression matrixes in order to ensure that pupil’s progress in reading and their
acquisition of a rich vocabulary accelerates

Review staffing structure and deployment of teaching and non-teaching staff in the light of
budgetary pressures caused by declining SEND top-up funding.

Greensted lunior School

To continue to implement a robust Recovery Curriculum focusing on accelerating the progress of all
groups of children (including boys, girls, disadvantaged pupils and academically more able)

To continue to raise attainment at end of Key Stage Two for ali groups of children in National Tests
To maintain and develop high standards of behaviour and community cohesion

To improve the attendance overall of all groups, especially the disadvantaged

To decrease the persistent absenteeism rate

To continue to promote the well-being of staff and pupils _

To ensure all staff and stakeholders are aware and contribute towards the updated Covid 19 Risk
Assessment )

To review staffing structure and deployment of teaching and non-teaching staff in the light of
budgetary pressures.

To ensure all staff and stakeholders are aware and contribute towards the ongoing Covid 19 Risk
Assessment

The Phoenix Primary School & Nursery

Implement a robust catch-up and curriculum recovery action plan in order to raise standards of
achievement, progress and attainment as a result of missed learning during Covid-19

To continue to strengthen leadership at all levels across the school, ensuring that all are accountable
and responsible for the standards and achievement in their subjects. Supporting new leaders in
leading their subjects.

Leaders and governors focus on consistently improving outcomes for disadvantaged pupils

Ensure that much teaching over time in all Year Groups is outstanding and never less than
consistently good

To improve the attendance overali by all groups, especially the disadvantaged

To promote the well-being of staff and pupils

To embed reading progression matrixes in order to ensure that pupit’s progress in reading and their
acquisition of a rich vocabulary accelerates

Review staffing structure and deployment of teaching and nan-teaching staff in the light of
budgetary pressures.

Investigate and pursue the expansion from a three to a four-form entry.

Ryedene Primary & Nursery School

Implement a robust catch-up and curriculum recovery action plan in order to raise standards of
achievement, progress and attainment. )

Design the curriculum to enable teachers to plan well-sequenced lessons in all foundation subjects
and reading so that pupils make strong progress in these subjects.

Ensure the curriculum equips teachers with the skills and strategies to plan sequences of learning
that meet the needs of the most able in all subjects of the curriculum and in the early years
Improve the outcomes for writing in all year groups, especially for boys and disadvantaged pupils
Develop the teaching of Maths

Ensure that the rate of persistent absence continues its decline so that all pupils attend school
regularly.

Develop the school’s analysis of, and response to, pupils’ behaviour over time

To maintain the very highest pupil performance standards across the school, with pupils continuing
to achieve at or above the national standards

To be judged as outstanding in the EYFS

e e
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Northlands Primary School & Nursery
e Raising attainment at end of Key Stage Two for all groups of children
Implement a catch up and recovery curriculum to raise progress and attainment
To improve attendance overall by all groups
Review staffing structure and deployment of support staff in the light of budgetary pressures
To embed a new English scheme of work with an emphasis on raising reading attainment and progress
To develop a curriculum with an emphasis on creating historians, scientists through embedding key skills
and knowledge

Greensted Infant School & Nursery

e Toensure that children’s gaps in knowledge or understanding due to the COVID 19 closure are
comprehensively identified and individually addressed. All planning will be based upon prior
assessment,

e Toensure consistently high standards of Teaching & Learning and pupil feedback, so that all lessons are
good or outstanding, thus impacting on all groups of pupils’ progress and outcomes. GLD, Phonics
Check and End of KS1 results to be at least national expectation.

e To continue to develop provision for SEN children and ‘disadvantaged children’ through the use of
specific intervention focused upon child’s learning barrier and scaffolded quality first teaching.

e To continue to provide a safe, happy, supportive working environment for all children & adults — by
supporting all children’s behavioural, social & emotional needs through the use of the PSHE curriculum
& Sensory Room &implementation of Behaviour Policy.

e Toimprove pupil attendance & meet target of 96%.

e Toraise the profile of Homework, encouraging children to consclidate learning at home.

e To work with Governing Body to induct new members, ensuring constructive challenge to the School.

- Public benefit

The Multi Academy Trust receives the majority of its income from the Department for Education to provide
educational services to children and to ensure that they have a broad & balanced curriculum. The Trustees
are satisfied that they meet the public benefit criteria.

The trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to have
regard to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit, ‘Charities and Public Benefit’.

Strategic Report Achievements.and. Performance

Lee Chapel Primary School & Nursery
Lee Chapel Primary School is an oversubscribed primary school, which has an Outstanding Ofsted rating.

The school received 349 applications for the September 2021 Reception intake for 120 places of which 163
were 1% choice and 163 2" & 3" choices. The school has eight open mornings with a total of 16 sessions, which
it holds in the autumn term for prospective new parents.

j T ee Chapel Primarp School '.

Qapire, Briieve, Adjirue

N
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Pupil Outcomes 2021

Awpire, i}ﬂtm. Ahicve

. Early Years Foundation % achieving | % achieving | % achieving | % achieving % achieving | % achieving | % achieving | % achieving
Stage GLD EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC
. Reading Writing Number ___SSM Self conf Man feelings Rel
All Pupils (122) 80.2% 83.5% 83.5% "90.1% '90.1% 92.6% 92.6% i 92.6%
Pupil Premium (18) 611% 66.7% 66.7% 833% | 833% 94.4% 94.4% 94.4%
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Non-Pupil Premium (104) 83.5% 86.4% 86.4% 91.3% 91.3% 922% 92.2% 92.2%
Boys (67) 74.2% 78.8% 78.8% 84.8% 84.8% 86.4% 86.4% 86.4%
Girls (55) 87.3% 89.1% 89.1% 96.4% 96.4% 100% 100% 100%

Year 1 Phonics

% achieving national expectations

All Pupils (103/120) 86%
Pupil Premium (13/120) 65%
Non-Pupil Premium (107/120) 89%

End of Key Stage 1

No. of pupils meetingage | % of pupils meeting age No. of pupils exceeding | % of pupils exceeding age
related expectations related expectations age related expectations related expectations
Reading
All pupils (122) 103 85% 33 27%
Pupil Premium (25) 18 72% 1 4%
Non-Pupil Premium (96) 85 87% 32 33%
Writing
All pupils (122) 95 79% 34 28%
Pupil Premium (25) 15 60% 2 8%
Non-Pupil Premium (96) 80 83% 32 33%
Mathematics
All pupils (122) 96 79% 45 37%
Pupil Premium (25) 16 64% 5 20%
Non-Pupil Premium (96) 80 83% 40 41%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)
All pupils (122) 88 72% 31 25%
Pupil Premium (25) 13 52% 1 4%
Non-Pupil Premium (96) 75 78% 30 31%

End of Key Stage 2

No. of pupils meeting age
related expectations

Lee Chapel
% of pupils meeting age
related expectations

No. of pupils exceeding
age related

expectations
(Test Scaled Score 2 110)

% of pupils exceeding age
related expectations
(Test Scaled Score 2 110)

Reading
All pupils (127) 109 86% 63 50%
Pupil Premium (42) 34 81% 13 31%
Non-Pupil Premium (85) 75 88% 53 57%
Writing (Teacher Assessment)
All pupils (127) 114 90% 69 54%
Pupil Premium (42) 18 43% 16 38%
Non-Pupil Premium (85) 80 94% 53 62%
Grammar, Punctuation and Spelling
All pupils (127) 113 89% 66 52%
Pupil Premium (42) 35 83% 18 43%
Non-Pupil Premium (85) 78 92% 55 65%
Mathematics
All pupils (127) 114 90% 54 43%
Pupil Premium (42) 36 86% 12 27%
Non-Pupil Premium (85) 78 92% 47 55%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)

All pupils (127) 107 84% 53 42%
Pupil Premium (42) 34 81% 8 19%
Non-Pupil Premium (85) 73 86% 46 54%




Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021

Analysis & Main objectives

After the cancellation of statutory primary assessment in 2020 and 2021 due to COVID-19, the DfE’s intention is
for the early years foundation stage (EYFS) profile and all existing statutory key stage 1 and 2 assessments to
return in 2021/22, following their usual timetable. )

The data presented is therefore based on teacher assessments, which have gone through rigorous moderation.

Attendance
Whole School Attendance 2020/21 was 96.25%
FSM/Pupil Premium Attendance 2020/21 was 92.95%
Lee Chapel Teaching School Alliance

The Lee Chapel Teaching School runs the School Direct Training programme for the Basildon schools. The
teaching school advertise and recruits’ trainees who wish to train as teachers. The teaching school can award
Qualified Teacher Status (QTS). The Teaching school had 11 trainees who were awarded their Qualified Teacher
Status and 9 gained employment within the Basildon schools and 2 outside of Basildon.

Greensted Junior School

NATIONAL CURRICULUM RESULTS 2021

Key Stage 2
No. of pupils expected | % of pupils expected | No. of pupils expected | % of pupils expected
to meet age-related to meet age-related to exceed age related | to exceed age related
expectations expectations expectations expectations
Reading
All pupils (61) 55 ; 90% 25 #%
Pupil Premium (30) 25 e 9 T Hot
Non-Pupil Premium (31) 29 94% ' 16 B Ghy
Wri'ﬁ‘ng —
All pupils (61) 55 90% T 22 ET8
Pupil Premium (30) 26 o erh 8 25t
Non-Pupil Premium (31) 30 7% ' 14 R0
“Maths
All pupils (61) 51 = 84% " 16 a6
Pupil Premium (30) 22 73% 5 17
Non-Pupil Premium (31) 29 i 94% = 1 #6%
Combined Results (ﬁi'ading, Writing and Maths)
All pupils (61) 49 " 80% 13 1%

10
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Pupil Premium (30) | 21 o 70% | 3
i : L N
Non-Pupil Premium (31) 28 o S 90% | 10
Analysis & Main objectives.

Early starts (8.30am) providing dedicated time for teacher and LSA to “pick up” issues from previous day
and “pre-teach” where necessary

M Reduction in assemblies meaning an increase in whole class reading to end the day

Weekly whole class guided reading sessions taught by the class teacher (not cover teacher) focusing on
a range of questions from the reading domains.

Additional Extra “English” lessans each week taught by English Leads across all Year groups (Big

Read/Write) using Whaole Class Modelled Reading techniques (Rising Stars Whiteboard Resource

Purchased) ‘

Tailored personalised coaching of targeted pupils across Year Groups including English Lead and Deputy

Headteacher working with groups on fluency and literal understanding.

Language and vocabulary to be a huge push in all curriculum areas with Tier 1,2,3 vocabulary to be

displayed, explained & used in writing a cross all subjects.

Midday assistants / Trainee teachers to read regularly with the focus pupils in their Year group Bubble.

Targeted Tuition for Year 6 “Cusp” children —lead by experienced HLTA to “pick up” misunderstanding

from the lesson —same day intervention

Weekly additional Marvellous maths lessons - planned and taught by the class teachers using the SATS

analysis as the main focus ( Fractions, % , shape, protractor work etc - where marks were dropped)

Explicit links to maths in other subject areas e.g. statistics in Science.

Using White Rose as a main basis for the planning with a view to move units around where they need

the most emphasis { based on the gap analysis)

Attendance

Q@ 3

Bl

|

™

Whole School Attendance 2020/ 2021: 93.8%

Whole School Attendance: FSM / Pupil Premium Attendance 2020/2021 : 91.22%

Phoenix Primary School & Nursery Outcomes 2021

Phonics

Early Years Foundation Stage (89) T i 66.3%
Pupil Premium (23) ' 478%

Non-Pupil Premium (66) 72%

" Year 1(82) ’ ' 85%

Pupil Premium (29) 79%

Nan-Pupil Premium (54) 89%
Year 2 (79) 85.9%
Pupil Premium (23) | 76.2%
Non-Pupil Premium (55) — . 89.5%

11
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Key Stage 1
No. of pupils %-of pupils expected No. of pupils
expected to meet | to meet age-reloted | expected to exceed
age-related expectations age related
expectations expectations
ﬁ;ading .
All pupils (79) 63 79.7% 15
Pupil Premium (23) 16 69.6% 0
Non-Pupil Premium (56) 47 83.9% 15
“Weriting
All pupils (79) 63 797% 15
Pupil Premium (23) 15 65.2% 0
Non-Pupil Premium (56) 43 B '76.8%— ) 14
Maths
All pupils (79) 61 77.2% 20
Pupil Premium (23) 16 69.67; o
Non-Pupil Premium (56) 45 804 20

Combined Results (Reading,

Writin§ and Maths)

All pupils (79) 58 73.4% 13
Pupil Premium (23) 15 65.2% 0
Non-Pupil Premium (56) 43 T T768% 13
Key Stage 2
No. of pupils % of pupils expected No. of pupils % of pupils expected
expected to meet to meet age-related | expected to exceed to exceed age
age-related expectations age related related expectations
expectations expectations
Reading
All pupils (59) 55 '93.2% 32
Pupil Premium (36) 34 94.4"/,‘ 17
Non-Pupil Premium (23) 21 91.3% 15
Writing
Al pupils (59) 52 88.1% 24
Pupil Premium (36) 32 88.9% ! 14
Non-Pupil Premium (23) 20 87% 14

12
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Maths
All pupils (59) 54 Tole% =
Pupil Premium (36) 32 - Bs_é% 7- ] } 18
Non-Pupil Premium (23) 22 95 7% = ( m

Combined Résul?s (Reading, Writing and Maths)

All pupils (59) 52 ) 881% - ° 20
Pupil Premium (36) . 32 = , 88,9%"‘" C 11
Non-Pupil Premium (23) 20 T “87% - ' 9

Analysis & Main objectives

The Phoenix Primary School and Nursery recently expanded the Nursery to accommodate 150 pupils. The
school has split the Nursery into two distinct age group classes (rising 3s and rising 4s) to ensure the older pupils
are Reception class ready.

Since joining Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust, the school has seen radical improvements across all key stages
and most notable in our KS2 results in 2018, 2019 and 2021 (Teacher Assessment). The school has worked
closely with Mrs S Jackson (CEQ) and has implemented ali the suggested improvements to systems and teaching
resulting in significant improvements in terms of pupil’s outcomes.

The school is now an oversubscribed three-form entry primary school in all years. We have an extensive waiting
list for Reception and across the school. We are in the process of gaining planning permission in preparation to
move towards a four-form entry primary school in the future.

The school has worked tirelessly to improve its reputation, which was poor in the past. Phoenix is now held in
high esteem by all, with governors extremely proud of the achievements to date.

The success of the school’s progress on its school improvement journey is due to the talented and dedicated
staff and the swift action of the leadership team. The recent Ofsted stated ‘Since becoming an academy in
2016, inspirational leadership from the headteacher and her deputy headteacher has transformed the quality of
education provided for pupils’

‘Teaching is outstanding. Staff go the extra mile to ensure that pupils overcome any barriers to their learning and
make exceptional progresses. The distributed leadership and ‘team purpose’ is also a significant factor in the
success of the school. The aspirational strategic and robust operational leadership and management of the school
continues to drive up pupils’ standards of attainment (as evidenced in books) and accelerate their progress
(evidenced in tracking data and pupil outcomes).

The learning environment and building updates have inspired the children and promoted a ‘can do’ culture which
has supported the schools drive to raise standards of attainment and rates of pupil progress.

The school has been most successful with accelerating the progress of the most disadvantaged pupils and those
in receipt of pupil premium or SEN funding.

Attendance
Whole School Attendance 2020/21 was 93.9%

FSM/Pupil Premium Attendance 2020/21 was 90.2%
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There is a clear drive towards improving attendance for 2021/22, due to Coronavirus lockdowns and constant
changing of attendance coding from the Government.

Ryedene Primary & Nursery School

The school received 81 Reception applications for 60 places. We had a waiting list of 11 children for the year.
This was the second year of our move to two forms of entry. The school held-two open mornings.

Ryedene Primary and Nursery School was graded as ‘good’ by Ofsted in June 2019 in all Ofsted categories.
Continued improvements in the quality of teaching have been supported by the head teacher and the School
Leadership Team. School leaders continue to scrutinise and act upon outcomes for disadvantaged pupils,
however their standards and in 2019/20 and 20/21 decreased due to the lockdowns. On the pupils’ return the
school have been extremely focused on catch up and getting the disadvantaged pupils back to working at the
expected standard. Governors continue to regularly monitor the work of the school, as outlined in the School
Development Plan. During 2020/21 governor monitoring has focussed on catch up and the recovery curriculum
as well as the impact individual leaders are having on standards.

SR8
Ryedene Primary and Nursery School =
Pupil Outcomes 2021 XA
Early Years % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving
Foundation Stage 6LD EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXPeEXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC
Reading Weriting Number SSM Self- Building Managing Self
; Requlation Relationships
All Pupils (60) - 65% 65% 65% 73% 73% 78% 78% 78%
Pupil Premium (21) "29% 29% 29% 48% 48% 48% 48% 48%
Non-Pupil Premium 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 95% 95% 95%
(39)
Boys (31) 52% 52% 52% 52% 52% 71% 71% 71%
Girls (29) 79% 79% 79% 79% 79% 93% 93% 93%
Year 1 Phonics % achieving national expectations’
All Pupils (50) 56%
Pupil Premium (25) 36%
Non-Pupil Premium (25) 76%

End of Key- Stage 1

No. of pupils meetingage | % of pupils meeting age No. of pupils exceeding | % of pupils exceeding age
related expectations related expectations age related expectations related expectations
_ Reading. ‘
All pupils (30) 20 67% 10 33%
Pupil Premium (12) 8 67% . 4 33%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 12 67% 6 33%
“Writing .
All pupils (30) 19 63% 9 30%
Pupil Premium (12) 8 67% 4 33%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 11 61% 5 28%
Maths
All pupils (30) 20 67% 5 17%
Pupil Premium (12) 9 75% 2 17%
Non-Pupil Premium.(18) 11 61% 3 17%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths):

All Pupils (30) 17 57% 3 10%
Pupil Premium (12) 6 50% 1 8%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 11 61% 2 11%
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End of Key Stage:2

No. of pupils % of pupils % pupils % pupils Progress No. of pupils % of pupils
meeting age meeting age | achieving 'at | achieving ‘at Measure: exceeding exceeding

related related least least KS1 to KS2 age related age related

expectations | expectations expected’ expected’ expectations | expectations

Essex England (Test Scaled (Test Scaled

Score = 110) Score > 110)

Reading ‘
All pupils (30) 23 77% 9 30%
Pupil Premium (12) 8 67% 2 17%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 14 78% 1 7 39%
Writing (Teacher Assessment)
All pupils (30) 18 60% 7 23%
Pupil Premium (12) 4 33% 0 0%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 14 78% | 7 39%
' Maths
All pupils (30) 23 77% 5 17%
Pupil Premium (12) 8 67% 2 17%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 15 ) 83% } , 3 17%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)
All Pupils (30) 17 57% o 3 10%
Pupil Premium (12) 4 33% 0 0%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 13 72% ! 3 17%
Grammar, Punctuation & Spelling

All Pupils (30) 24 80% | 9 30%
Pupil Premium (12) 8 67% ; 1 8%
Non-Pupil Premium (18) 16 89% 8 44%

Analysis & Main objectives

Strengths of the school, highlighted in our previous Ofsted and previous MAT Reviews include;

e The schoof has established a strong culture of learning and pupils display positive learning behaviours

e Teachers and pupils value learning and work hard together so that pupils make good progress

e Relationships between staff and pupils is a strength

e Leaders’ professional development for teachers is effective and has contributed towards the many
improvements to teaching, learning and assessment over recent years

e Teachers are fully committed to their professional development and use what they learn to improve
their pupils’ learning

e  Pupils make good progress as they move through the school

e  Pupils show confidence in their learning. They demonstrate determination to succeed and they learn
well together

s The quality of provision in the early years is good. Children enjoy and value their learning and make a
good start to their education

e Leaders’ and teachers’ support for pupils with special educational needs and/or disabilities {SEND) is
effective. These pupils make good progress from their starting points

Attendance

Attendance 2020/21 =95.1%

FSM/Pupil Premium Attendance = 92.15%
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All Pupils (85) 80%
Pupil Premium 87%
Non-Pupil Premium 65%

End of Key Stage 1

No. of pupils meeting age % of pupils meeting age No. of pupils exceeding age % of pupils exceeding age
related expectations related expectations related expectations related expectations
Reading
pupils (89) 59 66% 12 13%
Pupil Premium (35) 20 57% 4 11%
Non-Pupil Premium (54) 39 72% 8 15%
Writing
All pupils 64 71% 14 16%
Pupil Premium 22 62% 5 14%
Non-Pupil Premium 42 77% 9 17%
Maths
All pupils 61 68% 9 10%
Pupil Premium 24 68% 2 6%
Non-Pupil Premium 37 69% 7 13%
- Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)
All Pupils 55 62% 1 12%
Pupi| Premium 19 54% 2 6%
Non-Pupil Premium 36 66% 9 16%
End of Key Stage 2
No. of pupils meeting | % of pupils meeting No. of pupils % of pupils exceeding
age related age related exceeding age related
expectations expectations age related expectations
expectations
Reading
All pupils (75) 48 " 64% 22 29%
Pupil Premium (31) 18 58% 6 19%
Non-Pupil Premium (44) 30 68% 16 36%
Writing (Teacher Assessment)
All pupils (75) 60 80% 20 26%
Pupi! Premium 22 70% 9 26%
Non-Pupil Premium 38 86% 11 25%
Maths
__All pupils (75) 52 69% 16 . 21%
Pupil Premium 23 74% 5 16%
Non-Pupil Premium 29 65% _ 11 25%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)
All Pupils (75) 45 60% 12 16%
Pupil Premium 17 54%, 3 9%
Non-Pupil Premium 28 63% 9 20%

Analysis & Main objectives

The following measures have been put in place in order to help us achieve further school improvements next

year:

e Continue to stream classes to allow smaller groups of similar ability children to be taught together
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e Increase adult supportin Year Groups of concern (Year 3 and Year 6)
e To develop the school’s KS2 playground
e Toinvestigate further ways for the school to generate income

Attendance

Attendance 2020/21 = 93.58%

FSM/ Pupil Premium Attendance 2020/21 = S0.90%

Greensted Infant School & Nursery

Greensted Infant School & Nursery is a successful, over-subscribed Infant School, which has a good OFSTED

rating.

The School received 163 applications for the September 2021 intake for the 60 places.

Greensted Infant School & Nursery

Early Years % % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving % achieving
Foundation Stage achieving EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC EXP+EXC
6L0 Reading Writing Number SsSM Self conf Man feelings Rel

All Pupils (60) 45% 53% 50% 60% 82% 78% 85% 92%
Pupil Premium (18) 28% 33% g 33% 33% 72% 67% 72% 89%
Non-Pupil Premium (42) .| 52% 62% i 57% 71% 86% 83% 91% 93%
Boys (34) 44% 53% 47% 61% 82% 74% 82% 94%
Girls (26) 46% 54% 54% 58% 81% 85% 89% 89%

Pupil Outcomes 2021

Year 1 Phonics

% achieving national expectations

All Pupils (60) 60%
Pupi! Premium (20) 45%
Non-Pupi! Premium (40) 63%
Boys (32) 63%

Girls (28) 54%

End of Key Stage 1

No. of pupils meeting % of pupils meeting age No. of pupils exceeding % of pupils exceeding
age related related expectations age related expectations age related
expectations expectations
Reading
All pupils (60) 39 65% 11 18%
Pupil Premium (22) 10 45% 1 5%
Non-Pupil Premium (38) 29 76% 10 26%
Boys (28) 16 57% 4 14%
Girls (32) a3 72% 7 22%
Writing
All pupils (60) 35 58% 8 13%
Pupil Premium (22) 10 45% 1 5%
Non-Pupil Premium (38) 25 66% 7 18%
Boys (28) 12 43% 3 1%
Girls (32) 23 72% 5 16%
Maths
All pupils (60) 41 68% 1 18%
Pupil Premium (22) 11 50% 1 45%
Non-Pupil Premium (38) 30 79% 10 26%
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Boys (28) 16 ' 57% 7 25%

Girls (32) 25 ‘ 78% 4 13%
Combined Results (Reading, Writing and Maths)

All Pupils (60) 34 57% 6 10%

Pupil Premium (22) 9 41% 1 5%

" Non-Pupil Premium (38) 25 66% 5 13%

Boys (28) 12 ] 43% 3 11%

Girls (32), 22 69% 3 9%

Analysis & Main objectives

‘Catch Up” Plans for September 2021
e Teachers allocated to their strongest year groups ensuring highest expectations.
e  SMT to have weekly teaching commitment to support ongoing monitoring and raising standards.
e Catch Up Clubs to continue in all classes — expectation for all teachers to run Catch Up Club weekly - cusp
children specifically targeted.
TAs to run Catch Up Clubs before and after school & at lunchtime - cusp children specifically targeted.
Restructuring of TA workforce: :
o Recruitment of SENCo TA to oversee paperwork aspect of SEN, thus allowing SENCo to have more
time to work specifically in class with teachers & TAs to support SEN children.
o Recruitment of additional TA to support Catch Up strategy.
o 2 TAs allocated to be Reading Champions in September - reading daily with targeted, cusp
children — focus on decoding and comprehension skills.
o Additional Year 2 Literacy group — lower ability, thus freeing class TAs/teachers to work with cusp
children.
o Ongoing reading reward to encourage children to engage in weekly homework and reading.

This academic year, we will resubmit our bid for a new Nursery build, which will enable us to build a purpose-
built Nursery unit, which will meet the needs of our children, as well as expanding our capacity. In the longer
term, we hope to expand to 3-form entry.

We have recently had several new Governors — 2 parent and a co-opted Governor and the skills level of our
Governing Body has increased.

We have worked hard on our budget this year, making frugal decisions, as well as increasing the amount of
money that the school generates. Our 30 hours Nursery provision, as well as our after-school club is now firmly
established.

Attendance:
Whole School Attendance 2020/21: 94.04%

Pupil Premium Attendance 2020/21: 93.16%

Going Concern

The trustees have considered the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Trust’s activities and financial
position and have reviewed the Trust’s projections and forecasts throughout the last twelve months following
the date of approval of this report. The operational impact is dealt with elsewhere in this report, however the
financial impact has resulted in reduced income particularly in respect of trips and lettings activities and
additional expenditure in respect of continuation of additional cleaning costs and staffing requirements. After
making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees considers these effects to be manageable and therefore has
a reasonable expectation that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern hasis in preparing the
financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the

19




Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2021

Statement of Accounting Policies.

Prombting the success of the coripany

The trust as a charity maintains its status within the community by promoting its academies and its
achievements i.e. OFSTED ratings to ensure that the high standards in achievements are maintained. The pupils
are rewarded when outstanding achievements are made. The Trust builds on its relationships with other
Businesses including local ones and has tried to centralise contracts where possible to ensure it has some
continuity for all its academies, which will continue.

Financial Review

The Trust has made it a priority to ensuré high standards are maintained in the children’s attainments and the
environment they are taught in but at the same time as ensuring this is within the budget and any proposals for
additional expenditure is rigorously evaluated especially in view of the current climate of uncertainty about future
funding,

During this period most of the Trust’s income is from the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
various grants including COVID recovery and emergency support. Some additional grants (Early Years , SEN and
growth funding for schools expanding ) have been received from the Local Authority. The grants and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA). The trust overall income
from other income streams continued to be affected by COVID 19 throughout the last year and additional
expenditure incurred in order to remain open and ensure the safety of staff and pupils .

The Trust also received grants from the Local Authority for fixed assets (two classrooms built at Northlands Primary
School). This grant is shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) as restricted income in the fixed asset
fund. This fund is reduced annually by the depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets
concerned.

The Trust raises and receives funds from the children to pay for a wide variety of activities and these have been
applied against the associated costs and these are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) as
unrestricted funds.

The Trust in year surplus was £541,000.

The Local Government Pension Scheme, which is provided to support staff, is a restricted fund and the projected
deficits are included within the fund, which reduces the reserves shown in the total funds of the Trust.

The Governors have appointed Juniper Educations Services Ltd to complete a programme of internal checks on
internal controls and reports have been provided to the chairperson and the head teacher.

Reserves Policy

The Trust aims to carry forward some resources from the (restricted fund) to cover the medium and long-term
needs for renewal and replacement of major capital items and unforeseen contingencies. At the year end the
trust held general restricted funds of £1,726,000 (2020: £1,457,000) and general unrestricted funds of £944,000
(2020: £788,000).

The unrestricted fund represents funds received for educational activities, breakfast club, tuck, nursery and
teatime club and their related expenses, which are not included within the restricted reserves within SORP.

The Local Government Pension Scheme is included within restricted funds however, it should be noted that the
academy has to recognise a significant pension fund deficit. This does not impose an immediate liability and if it had
surplus funds, then this would still be included within the restricted fund but it would not be an asset which could be
realised and subsequently funds expended.

Investment:Policy’
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The trustees of the trust are firmly committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are administered in
such a way as to maximise return while minimising risk. Trustees do not consider the investment of surplus
funds as a primary activity, but rather a requirement for the effective management of the various funds. Surplus
funds are therefore invested in short-term bank deposits where appropriate.

Local Governors’ management of cash flow should ensure that there are always sufficient funds in the main
bank account to cover operational costs. Banks must be selected from the FSA Approved List included in the
Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS).

Local Governors will seek to ensure that any cash.not required for operating expenses is placed on deposit at
the most favourable rate. If longer-term arrangements were required then alternative investment opportunities
would be sought, e.g. Treasury Bonds, long term deposits. However, the providers would be selected from the
FCA Approved List included in the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS).

Local Government Pension Scheme

The Academy participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme. At 31 August 2021, the deficit on that
scheme was £11,220,000. The deficit on the pension scheme was inherited from Essex County Council. From
1%t April 2017, the Pension fund increased the monthly contribution rate paid based on employees” monthly
salaries to include the pension deficit. The Trust agreed in June 2021 to receive a combined report for all the
academies in place of the individual reports.

Einancial.and Risk Managemerit Objectives and Policies:

The main financial risk to the academy trust is the cash flows. The governing body’s monitor cash flow to
ensure that the academy has sufficient funds available to meet it debts as they fall due. The Governors have
assessed the credit risk but as the academy’s main income is from the ESFA and Essex County Council they feel
that this is not an issue as funds are received when due. The Trust Finance and audit committee receive the
individual schools” monthly reports (Cashflow, Trial Balance and Balance sheet) and consolidated reports.

Principal Risks:and Unc::enai‘r‘\'tiegr

Trustees and Governors have identified the following areas affecting the academy risk and uncertainties at the
Academy.

The principal risk is the closure of the school due to multiple cases of COVID amongst pupils and staff. The
measures in place to mitigate this risk (separate Year Group bubbles of staff and pupils, additional cleaning and
sanitisation and prohibiting all visitors to the school, including parents etc.) will ensure that the school remains
open.

Uncertainties regarding staffing levels are managed by deploying all staff to specific Year Group bubbles and
increasing capacity to cover absent colleagues who are self-isolating.

Financial Risk

The academy continues to operate in a period of uncertainty with regard to public funding. The number of pupils
in the individual academy drives the funding and the schools proactively organise open events for prospective
parents. The school development plans are followed closely to ensure that a continuing maintenance of the sites
are maintained and that staffing is sustainable. The trust is proactively reviewing the ongoing staffing structure
within the trust to reduce costs in order to eliminate any future deficit forecasts.

Failure in.Governance/managemerit -

Trustees and governors continue to review and ensure that measures are in place to mitigate this risk.

‘Reputational Risk
The continuing success of the academy trust depends on maintaining high educational standards in order to
attract sufficient numbers of outstanding teacher’s pupils to the school. Trustees and governors are focused on
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monitoring and reviewing the achievement and success of the children.

Safeguarding and Child Protection risks

Trustees and governors continue to ensure that high standards are maintained in selecting staff. The schools have
a child protection policy and provide training and support in order to protect the vulnerable young children in its
care.

Sighificint etianges in staff

Trustees and Governors have in place a succession planning policy to develop existing staff as well as continue to
review and monitor arrangements for any new staff which may be required.

We are an equal opportunity organisation and are committed to a working environment that is free from any
form of discrimination on the grounds of colour, race, ethnicity, religion, sex, sexual orientation or disability. We
will make reasonable adjustments to meet the needs of staff or pupils who are or become disabled".

Risk Management:

The trustees and governors are responsible for the management of risks to which the academy trust is exposed
and have completed a review of risks associated with its activities. The key controls used within the trust are:

Formal Agendas for all meetings
‘¢ Terms of Reference for the committees
Development Plan which identifies key strategic planning objectives and the resources required to
achieve them
Budget planning, monitoring and reviews strategy group
Financial authorisation and approval levels
Written policies reviewed regularly
Clear Safeguarding and vetting procedures as required by law to protect the pupils
Continuous review of educational achievements to ensure high standards can be achieved
Succession Planning
The individual academy expansion will only be considered if the funding is not lagged

e o o 0 o o o

The trustees and governors have reviewed the major risks, focusing on operational, financial, governénce,
compliance and reputational risk, and are satisfied that steps have been taken to mitigate the risks. The trustees
and governors recognise that systems can only provide reasonable assurance that major risks are adequately
managed.

The trustees have appointed Juniper Educational Services Ltd to complete the Internal Controls Evaluation and
provide assurance to the Trustees and Governors on Financial matters by performing a range of checks on the
Academy’s Financial Management System (ACCESS). The trust moved to a new Financial System on 1* March
2020 which has now had its first full year and has proved an asset in the providing consolidated management
reports. The visits are completed twice a year for each school and provide a report to the Chair of the Board,
Chair of Governors and the head teacher.

The Internal Controls Evaluation completed a review of the internal controls of all schools and the Trust on 2
occasions in accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook and did not identify any material control issues
as a result of the reviews.

There is no credit risk as the amounts generally owed to the academy are due from the local authority.
Fundraising

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. Due to COVID there were only a few fundraising
activities undertaken during the year. No complaints were received during the year in relation to fundraising
practices.
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Streamiined Energy.and Carbon Reporting.

iIf the trust is a large company, as determined by sections 465 and 466 of the Companies Act 2006 and
consumes more than 40,000 KWh of energy (in the UK) in a reporting period, it must include within the trustees’
report: its UK energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions, as a minimum relating to gas, purchased
electricity and transport fuel in the period

* its energy use and emissions
* an emissions intensity ratio
* methodologies used in the calculations

» measures taken to improve energy efficiency in the period an illustrative example of how it could do this is
shown below. All numbers are taken from the worked example in the good practice guide published by ESFA.
Either (where the trust is large and consumes more than 40,000 kWh energy in the period.

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 were as
follows:

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kwh) | 2,798,687
Energy consumption break down (kwh) (optional)
® gas, 1,899,965
« electricity, 894,371
 transport fuel 3,653
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e ’

- Gas consumption 347,997
Owned transport — mini-buses
Total scope1 ] 0.183
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e Business 0.136
travel in employee owned vehicles
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e | 538.85
Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.18

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:-

* We have followed the 2020 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government’s Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes
- CO2e per pupil, the recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency - Used video technology for meetings, to reduce the need for
travel between sites and where meetings could not be completed remotely operated a car sharing system.

Plans for Future Periods

The trust will continue to talent spot and train outstanding teachers to take on key roles across the multi
academy trust.

The objectives for the next year of the academy at Lee Chapel Primary School & Nursery are:

e To maintain the school’s ‘Outstanding’ rating
e To further improve the school’s provision and outcomes for all pupils and in particular disadvantaged
and ‘vulnerable’ pupils
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To further develop the curriculum and maintain the academic opportunities for all learners to
succeed

To continue to invest in provisions for the SEND, gifted and talented pupils

To further improve the library provision for all pupils

To maintain the Teaching School status

To continue to embed best practice with regards to assessment to learning. (editing, reshaping lessons
as a result of assessment, resilience, articulation of targets and learning, Steps to Success, Success
Criteria)

To continue to improve nursery provision and Out of School Hours Learning

To ensure that standards across ail 30 Classes are consistent

To further increase opportunities for the development of reading and vocabulary

The objectives for the next year of the Academy at Greensted Junior School are:

To continue to embed best practice with regards to assessment to learning. (editing, reshaping
lessons as a result of assessment, resilience, articulation of targets and learning, Steps to Success,
Success Criteria)

To further improve the school’s provision and outcomes for all pupils and in particular disadvantaged
and ‘vulnerable’ pupils

To further develop the curriculum and maintain the academic opportunities for all learners to
succeed )

To continue to raise standards in the teaching of Maths

To continue to invest in provisions for the SEND, gifted and talented pupils

To further increase opportunities for the development of reading and vocabulary

The objectives for the next year of the Academy at The Phoenix Primary School & Nursery are:

o & & o &

To sustain our recent Ofsted grading of Outstanding and embrace the school’s recent Ofsted success

To, further, improve the school’s provision and outcomes for all pupils, particularly the percentage
achieving greater depth in all areas.

To continue to refine the curriculum, particularly in Foundation Subjects so attainment in these subjects is
in-line with Reading, Writing, Maths and Science and maintain the academic opportunities for all learners
to succeed

To continue to develop RSE Education so that all children understand what constitutes healthy
relationships and tolerance towards diverse ways of life.

To further enhance extra curricula provision so that pupils’ experience is as rich and as varied as possible.
To promote our school within the local area and beyond as a ‘Beacon of Success’ (Ofsted July 2019

To continue to invest in provision for the SEND and the most able pupils

To push forward plans to become a four-form entry school in the future to meet locality ‘Basic Needs’

To develop and implement the school's recovery curriculum and catch-up action plans {personalised
learning) as a result of missed learning due to Covid-19.

To continue to develop the ability of staff to manage their own wellbeing and that of the pupils.

The objectives for the next year of the Academy at Northlands Primary School & Nursery are:

‘@

To further improve the outcomes for pupils and in particular to push the more abie so that
percentages at Greater Depth increase

To continue to have a focus on writing so that standards improve from Early years throughout the
school

To develop a broader curriculum

To mentor and coach our middle leaders

The objectives for the next year of the Academy at Ryedene Primary and Nursery School are:
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e Todesign the curriculum to enable teachers to plan well sequenced lessons in all foundation subjects i
so that pupils make strong progress in these subjects. ;

e The curriculum equips teachers with the skills and strategies to plan sequences of learning in reading
that meet the needs of all pupils, particularly thase pupils who find reading difficult.

e The curriculum equips teachers with the skills and strategies to plan sequences of learning that meet

the needs of the most able in all subjects of the curriculum and in the early years.

To improve the outcomes far writing in all year groups, especiallv_for boys and disadvantaged pupils

To continue to develop the teaching of Maths

To develop the school’s analysis of, and respanse to, pupils’ behaviaur over time

Tao prepare pupils for the future

To maintain the very highest pupil performance standards across the school, with pupils continuing to

achieve at or above the national standards

e  To achieve outstanding in EYFS

Greensted Infant School & Nursery

e To ensure that children’s gaps in knowledge or understanding due to the COVID 19 closure are
comprehensively identified and individually addressed. All planning will be based upon prior
assessment.

-». To ensure consistently high standards of Teaching & Learning and pupil feedback, so that all lessons are
good or outstanding, thus impacting on all groups of pupils’ progress and outcomes GLD, Phanics
Check and End of K51 results to be at least national expectation.

s To continue to develop provision for SEN children and ‘disadvantaged children’ through the use of i
specific intervention focused upon child's learning barrier and scaffolded quality first teaching.

e To continue to pravide a safe, happy, supportive working environment for all children & adults — by i
supporting all children’s behavioural, social & emotional needs through the use of the PSHE curriculum
& Sensory Room &implementation of Behaviour Policy.

« Toimprove pupil attendance & meet target of 96%. i

* Toraise the profile of Hamework, encouraging children to consolidate learning at home. .

o  To work with Governing Body to induct new members, ensuring constructive challenge to the School.

‘Funds held as Custadian-Trustee on behaif of others

The Academy does not hold any funds as Custodian Trustee.
Auditor
In so far as the governors are aware:

e Thereis no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and
e The governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make them aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that informatiori.

Moore Kingston Smith LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution proposing
that they be re-appointed as auditors will be put to the Annual General Meeting.

The trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as
the campany directors, an 1% December 2021 and signed on the board’s behalf by;

Mr C O’Callaghan

Chalr
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Scope of Responsibility’

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DFE’s Governance Handbook.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head teachers, Head of School and the
CEO as the Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety
and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the
funding agreement between Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are
also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance.

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 6 times during the year. (Some of
these meetings were online through Zoom due to COVID19 restrictions). Attendance during the year at
meetings of the governing body was as follows:

Governance Meetings attended Out of a possible
C O'Callaghan (Chairperson) 3 4
M Betteridge 3 4
D Kavanagh 3 4
S Robson 3 4
M Jenkins 2 4
M Smith 3 4
S Tomlinson 4 4
G Olugbodi 4 4
R Roberts 3 4
| Randle 2 4
S Jackson (Headteacher Lee Chapel & 4 4

Accounting Officer)

Governance Review.

The Management accounts and Key performance indicators are sent monthly to all members and trustees of
the board. .

The finance and audit committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to:

e  Oversee the budgets
o Oversee management accounts
& To review finance staff and look to centralise
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Governance Meetings attended Out of a possible
S Tomlinson 4 4
D Kavanagh 4 4
M Smith 4 4
R Roberts 3 4
. Medlock - ' 3 4
S Jackson (Headteacher / Accounting Officer) 4 4

Review of Value for.Money.

As accounting officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money canbe
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy
trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by continually amalgamating contracts across the
trust.

The trust promotes fair competition through quotations and tenders, in accordance with its Financial Regulations
to ensure that goods and services are secured in an economic, efficient and effective way. Contracts are reviewed
to ensure that they are competitive and meet the schools ongoing requirements.

The trust regularly chalienges quotes received and negotiates further reductions when appropriate in order to
ensure that Best Value for Money is obtained. Staff are encouraged to obtain best value for money by researching
alternative suppliers online for comparative products when spending their budgets. The Head teachers approves
all purchase orders and regularly challenge to ensure that we are obtaining best value.

All schools have a procurement framework in place that ensures that formal tender processes are followed or
three supplier quotes are obtained according to specified order value limits. The gquality of service, contract
prices and terms and conditions of the academy’s suppliers are regularly reviewed and compared with the open
market.

Income Generation

The academy has explored other‘opportunities to generate additional funds through Grants.

The Purpose of:the:System:of: Internal.Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place at the academy trust
for the year ended 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
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trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going pracess for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust’s significant risks that has been in place for the year ending 31 August 2021 and up to the date of

approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. in particular, it includes:

o comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

‘e regular reviews by the finance committee of reports which indicate financial performance against

the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Juniper Education Services Ltd to complete the Internal Control Evaluation (ICE) as internal auditor. Juniper
Education Services Ltd provides assurance to the trustees and governors on financial matters by performing a
range of checks on the academy’s financial management system {(ACCESS). Juniper auditor visits twice a year to
complete the checks and provides a report to the Chair of the Board, local Chair of Governors and head teacher
on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the governing body’s financial
responsibilities. Both reviews were conducted remotely.

The Juniper Education Services Ltd auditor role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a
range of checks on the academy trust’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current
period included:

Testing of the payroll systems

Testing of the purchase systems

Testing of the control accounts / bank accounts

Testing of compliance with the scheme of delegation and internal controls

The internal auditor completed a review of the internal controls of the Academy in accordance with the
Academies Financial Handbook and did not identify any material control issues as a result of the reviews.

The reports are sent to the Chair of the board, Chair of the local governing body, Head teacher and Chief
Financial Officer.

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in guestion the review has been informed by:

the work of the Juniper Educational Services Ltd auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the work of the academy trust and Juniper Educational Services Ltd who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
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The accounting officer has been advised of the Implications of the result of their review of the system of intern
control by the local governing body and plans to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system are in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 1* December 2021 and signed on its behaif by:

Signed Signed

Mr C O’Callaghan 5&&5;5 Jackson

Chairperson Accounting officer
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety
and noncompliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between
the academy trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that [ and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies FHinanctal Handbook.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non- comphance have been
discovered to date. Signed on 1 December 2021,

Mrs S Jackson

Accounting officer
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibillties

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are
required to:

o ' select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the'Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021;

& make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been foliowed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclase with reasanable accuracy at any time the financial positian
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006.They are also responsihle for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 15 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr C O’Callaghan

Chairperson
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust (‘the academy trust’) for the year
ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Shest, Statement of
Cash Flows and the related notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
palicies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its
incoming resources and apptication of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

Basis for opinion

Wae conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs(UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the audit of financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy
trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
UK, including the FRS's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requiremants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on lhe work we have performad, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the School's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information .

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and out auditor's report thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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(continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard..

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the strategic report and the trustees' annual report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and
+ the strategic report and the trustees’ annual report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the trustees’ annual report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:
» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures or trustees' remuneration specified by law are not mads; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities set out on page 31, the trustess (who
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
intarnal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis. for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effactiveness of the academy trust's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees' use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whsther the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School's ability to continue as a going concem. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
Howevaer, future events or conditions may cause the School to cease to continue as a going concern.

- . Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosuras, and whether the financial statements represant the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scops
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including and significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed befow.

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed
risks of material misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to
those assessed risks; and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during
the audit. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both
management and those charged with governance of the School.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
(continued)

Our approach was as follows:

*  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the School and
considered that the most significant are the Companies Act 2008, the Charities Act 2011, the Charities
SORP 2019, the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, the Academies Financial Handbaok 2020
and UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

* We obtained an understanding of how the School complies with these requirements by discussions with
management and those charged with governance,,

* We assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, including the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud and how it might accur, by holding discussions with management and those
charged with governance. )

= We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations.

+ Based on this understanding, we designed specific appropriate audit procedures to identify instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations. This included making enquiries of management and those
charged with governance and obtaining additional corroborative evidence as required.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy
trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to any party other than the
charitable company and charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Motwa Ka.’;m' Lo L

Date: 7 December 2021

James Cross (Senior Statutory Auditor) Devonshire House
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor 60 Goswell Road
London
EC1M 7AD
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 October 2021 and further to the requirements
of the Education Funding and Skills Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure
disbursed and income received by Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2020 to
31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report Is made solely to Lee Chapel Multl Academy Trust an ESFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Lee Chape! Multi Academy Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by l[aw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Lee Chapsl Multi Academy
Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 Novernber 2011 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2021 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 . We report to you whether anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in ali material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied
to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued
by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently dees not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion. .

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the academy trust's income and expenditure.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to

Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

The wark undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

e
.

Review of the Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and compliance and the evidence
Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general control environment and any
Review of minutes of the Board, various committees and sub-committees, management accounts,
Evaluation and walk through of the implementation of the internal control procedures, and detailed
Walk through and sample testing of staff expense claims and credit card expenditure, to ensure these
Sample test transactions for compliance with procurement policies, and that these comply with

Obtain and review key staff and governors' register of interests;

Sample test transactions for compliance with procurement policies, and that these comply with

Conclusion .

in the caurse of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the pericd 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authorities which govern them.

M obva Kimgefen Lo LU

Date: 7 December 2021

James Cross (Senior Statutory Auditor) Devonshire House
for and on behalf of Moore Kingston Smith LLP, Statutory Auditor 60 Goswell Road
London
EC1M 7AD
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust:

Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2021

(including Income and Expenditure Account and Statemant of Total Recognised Gains and Losses)

tncome and endowments from:
Donalions and capitat grants
Charitable activitles:
Funding for the academy trusi’s
educationa! operations

Other trading activities
Investments

Totat
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

Academy {rust educational operations
Total
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds
Other recognlsed gains/(lossas):
Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined
benefit pension schemas
Nét'movemaentiin funds.
Reconcillation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

All of the academy's activities derive from continuing oparations during the above two financial periods,

Note

87

16

16,24

Restricted .Restricted
Unrestricted General’ Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
83 174 1.637 1,874 1,656
18 15,814 - 15,832 14,582
194 19 - 213 220
. - . 1
275 . 16.007. 1,637 17919 . 16459
119 15,547 920 16,586 15,730
719 15,547 520 16,586 15.730..
156 460 77 1,333 729
: (1.389). 1,389 .
- (792) - (792) (693)
156 (1.721) 2,106 T 541 36°
788 (7.173) 31,848 24,863 24,827
T 944~ (9,494) 33,954 25404 24,863 _

A Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses is not required as all gains and losses are included in the Statement of Financial Aclivities.

The detailed comparative information for the Statament of Financial Activities is included in note 26.
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l.ee Chapel Multi Acadamy Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2021

Fixod assets
Tangible assels

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and'in hand

Liabilities

Creditors : Amounts falling due within ane year

Nat currant assaets/(llabflitias)
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pansion scheme liability
Total net asseats
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

Fixed asset fund

General fund

Pensian reserve
Total restricted funds
Unrostricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

12

14

18

24

16
16
16

16

2021
£000

544

3,486

4,030

. (1,360).

33,954
1,726

. (11.220)

2021 -
£000

33,954

—————————
36,624
(11,220)

23,404 -

24,460
944

T asam

2670 .

2020 2020
£000 £000
31,842
625
2684
3,300
_ (1058)
2,251
34,093
(9,230)
31,848
1,457
(8,230)
24,075
768
24.863

The financial statements on pages 38 to 58 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on _ l Q»Ce-'\*kgf . 2021 and are

signed on thsir behalf by:

Mr Craig O’Caflaghan

Chair of the Board of Governors
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 August 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash flows from Investing activitles

Changae tn cash and cagh aquivalents In the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Soptember 2020

Cash and cash aquivalents at 31 August 2021

: 2021 2020
Notes £000 £000
20 2197 1,080
21 . .
22 (1,395) (1.118)
802 @y
2,884 2712
23 3488 2884




| aa Chapal Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021

1 Statement of Accounting Palicles

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, excapt where noted), judgements and key
sources of astimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Company information
Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust is a private company limiled by guarantee, domiciled and incorporated in EngIand and Wales. The registered
office and principal place of business is The Knares, Basildon, Essex, SS16 SRU.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public banefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost
convention in accordance with the Financial Reparting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and
Reporting by Charities: ‘Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts In accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ire!and (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)) the Academias Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Lee Chapel Muiti Academy Trust meats the definition of 8 pubiic benefit entity under FRS 102,

The financial statements are praparad in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary amounts in these financial
stataments are rounded to the nearest thousand pound.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, The Governors have assessed whether the use of the going concem basis is
appropriate and have considered possible events or conditions that might cause significant doubt on the ability of the trust to continue as a going
concern. The Governors have made this assessment for a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financlal
statements. After making enquiries in particular abaut the potential impact of the Covid-19 on income generation and operations, the Governors
have concluded that there is a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. Should the Impact of Covid-19 require a reduction In expenditure or implementation of new ways of working, Govemors
are confident management will be able to develop and implement plans to achieve this. Governors are also sure that the Academy Trust has
sufficient General Reserves to enable time for plans to be daveloped and implemented in a strategic and timely way, ensuring long-term financial
stability. Accordingly the Governors continue to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be

measured reliably.

* Grants
Grants are inciuded in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for spacific purposes but not
expended during the psriod is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where enlitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is raceivable and any abatement in
respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the assat on which they are expended. Unspent
amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-relatad conditions) where the receipt is probable and the
amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is recsivable and to the extent the academy trust has provided the

goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to
assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and "Income from other trading activities". Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged
against "Income from other trading activities” and the proceeds are recognised as “"Income Irom other trading activities". Where it is Impractica!
to fair value the itams to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is
recognised within "Income Irom other trading activilies".
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

= Donated fixed assets
Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless itis impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of
the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the
appropriate fixed asset.category and depreciated aver the ussful economic lifa In accordanca with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expanditure

Expenditure is recognised once thera is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer
of economic benefits will be required in a settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including the support costs involved In undertaking
each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned batween
hose activities on a basis consistent with use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges
allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

« Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditura incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes costs of sll fundraising
activities events and non-charitable trading.

* Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the
academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for
impairment.

Whesre tangible fixed assats have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are
inctuded in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued uss of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged
to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciatlon is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freeho!d land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its
expacted useful life, as follows:

Long teashoid land ‘125 years, on a siraight iine basis
Long leasehold buildings 2% straight line

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 10% - 15% straight line
Computer hardware 20% - 33.33% straight line

Motor vehicles 15% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Dapraciation on these assats is not charged until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset s carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may
not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and thair recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Liablilitles

Liabilities ars recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of
aconomic benefit will be required in the setllement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the
amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay lo settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods and
services it must provide.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term,
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year anded 31 August 2021 (continued)

1

Statemant of Accounting Pollcles {continued)

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial Instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust
and their measurement basis are as foflows:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost. Prapayments are
not financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. - )

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost. Taxation and
social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the
cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation
The academy irust Is considered to pass the tests sat aut in Paragraph 1 Schadule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therafore it meets the definition
of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part
11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or
gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Employae benefits
The cost of any unused holiday entillement is recagnised in the period in which the employee’s services are raceived.

Termination benefits are recagnised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to terminate the employment of
an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Pansions Benefits
Retirerent benafits to ermployess of the academy trust are pravided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS') and the Lacal Govemment
Pension Scheme ('LGPS’). These are definad benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of penslons over employees’ working lives with the
academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions
are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospsclive unit credit method. The TPS is a multi-
employer scheme and there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting, The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the periad to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate trustee administered funds.
Pension scheme assets are measurad at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuaria! basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benelit changes, setllements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff
costs as incurred. Net interest on the net deflned beneflt liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Aclivities and comprises
the interest cost on the defined bensfit obligation and interest income on the scheme asssts, calculatad by multiplying the fair value of the
scheme assets at the beginning of the perlod by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations, The difference bstween the interest incomse on
the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immadiately in other recagnised gains and losses.
Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards maeating any of the charitable objacts of the academy trust at

the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset acquired or
creatad is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by lhe funder/donor and include grants from the
Education and Skills Funding Agency. :
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

1 Statement of Accounting Pollcies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of jJudgment
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstancas. '

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions .

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions canceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed bslow,

The present value of the Local Govemment Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depands on a number of tactors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a variely of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions includa the discount rate.
Any changes in these assumptions, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roli forward approach which projects
results from the latest full actuarial vajuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liabilily at 31
August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived fram the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amount of the pension liability.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted Restrictad
Unrestrictad General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital Grants - - 1,637 1,637
Other donations 83 174 - 237
2020/21 Total _ CE 174 1,837 1,874
2019120 Total 54 - 284 . 1,318 1,656 .
3 Funding for the Academy Trust's Educational Operations
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
DfE / ESFA revenue grants .
General Annual Grant (GAG) = 11,028 11,028 10,327
Other DIE/ESFA grants
UIFSM - 353 353 345
Pupil Premium o . 1,157 1,157 1,083
Teachers pay grant k3 144 144 137
Teachers pension grant - 422 422 -
Others - 567 567 598
Teaching School Grants - 153 153 193
. 13,824 - 13,824 12,683
Othar Govarnment grants
Local autharily grants . 1,828 1,828 1,625
. . N 1,828 ~ 1,828 1,625
Other Income from the academy trust's educational
operations ) 18 162 1680 208
) 18 “162 180 208
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's Educationa!l Operations (continued)

COVID-19 Additional Funding (non-DfE/ESFA)

Coronavirus exceptional support - < - 66
T T T . - T . 66
2020/21 Total . 18 . 15,814 . . 15,832 . : 14,882
2019/20 Total 76 14,506 14,582
The academy trust has baen eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support schemes in response to the coronavirus
outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “exceptional governmant funding”.
4 Other trading activitios
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 ~ £000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities - 12 12 13
Other generated income 194 7 201 207
2020/21 Total 194" 19 213 220
2019720 Total .. 202, 18 220 .
5 Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Short term deposits . . . . - 1
2020/21 Total - - - 1
2019/20 Total _ 1 % 1
6 Expenditure
Staff Non Pay Expanditure Total Total
Costs Premlises Other 2021 2020
E000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Academy's educational operations:

Direct costs 10,863 1,165 378 12,406 11,858
Allocated support cosls 2,928 567 667 4,180 3.872
2020/21 Total 13,789 1,752 - 1,045 16,586 15,730
2018/20 Total 12,958 1,728 1,044 - 15,730 .

Net incomel(expenditure) for the period includes: 2021 2020
£000 £000
Depraciation 920 822
Fees payable to auditor far:
Audit 23 22
Other services 10 15
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

7 Charitable Activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educationat operations
2020/21 Total

2019/20 Total

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Legal Costs
Governance cosls

8 Staff

. Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were:

Wagss and salaries
Sacial securily costs

Operating costs of defined benefit pansion scheme

Apprenticeship levy

Staff training
Supply staff costs

(-2

. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during the period was as follows:

Teschers
Administration and support
Management

The full time equivalent number of persons employed by the trust during the period was as follows:

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

. Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
30 11,396 920 12,406 11,858
28 4,151 - 4,180 3,872
- 419" T 15547 T T 920~ < 16,586 - T 15,730"
251 14,657 . B22 15,730
Educational Total Total
operations 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000
2,926 2,926 2,659
24 24 9
587 587 547
578 578 594
7 7 J
58 58 80
4,180 4,180 ~ 3,872
2021 2020
£000 £000
9,604 9,140
778 701
3.278 2,907
33 31
13,693 12,778
92 96
4 . -83 .
13,789 12,958
2021 2020
No. No.
154 137
320 349
23 .. .23 .
497 . 509
2021 2020
No. No,
136 121
177 198
22 22
335

KR
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

8 S8taff (continued)
<. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer qenslon costs) exceaded £60,000 was:

2021 2020

No. No.
£60,001 - £70,000 3 4
£70,001 - £60,000 2 2
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 -

d. Key management personnal

The key management personne! of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total
amount of employee benefits (including employer penslon contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy
trust was £1,625,000 (2020: £1,778,000).

9 Related Party Trar tions - Yrustees' Remuneration and Expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has raceived other benefits from an employment with the academy trust. The headteacher
and ather stalf trustees only receive remuneration in raspact of services they provide undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff members
under their contracts of employment.

S L Jackson (headteacher and trustee):
Remuneration £80,001 - £95,000 (2020 : £80,001 - £85,000)
Employer’s pansion contributions £20,001 - £25,000 (2020 : £15,001 - £20,000)

No governors raceived reimbursements for expenses during the year ended 31 August 2021 (2020: none),

10'Trustaes:and officers insurance

In accordance with normal cornmarcial practice the Lee Chapel Primary School, Greensted Junior School, Greensted Infant School, Northlands
Primary School, The Phosenix Primary School and Ryedene Primary and Nursery School within the muiti academy trust have purchased insurance
to protect govemnors and cfficers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The
insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 for each schoa! on any one claim. The Trust is covered under the schoo! insurance for the members
and trustees and the cost of this insurance is included In the total ingurance cost and is not separataly idantifiable.

1

-

Disclosure of central services

The academy trust has provided central services lo its academies during the year, including human resourcaes, financial services, legat services
and educational support sarvices.

Centra! services have been charged on a basis of 1% on General Annual Grant income and a fixed cast per school.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as fallows:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Lee Chape! Primary School 53 55
Greensted Junior School 25 26
Northlands Primary School and Nursery 39 39
The Phoenix Primary School and Nursery 37 37
Rysdene Primary School and Nursery 25 26
Greensted Infant School and Nursery 21 23
200 206~

47



Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

12 Tanglble MNixed assets

L b A Y

Land and Under Furniture and Computer
Buildings Construction Equipment Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost .
At 1 Saptembar 2020 33,617 . 1,003 606 35,226
Additions 2,606 - 372 54 3,032
Disposals - . (14) (23) {37y
At 31 August 2021 36,223 B 1,361 ° ) 637 " ~_ 38,221
Dapraciation X
At 1 September 2020 2,308 - 651 425 3,384
Charged in year 601 - 173 146 920
Disposals . = = . {14) (23).. (37)
At 31 August 2021 . . . 2,309 - . 810 548 . 4,267
Net book values
At 31 August 2021 33,314 B 2 551 89 33,954
Al 31 August 2020 31,309 - 352 181 31,842

The trust's transactions relating to tand and buildings included:
» 125 year lease with Essex County Council from 11 August 2011 for Les Chapel! Primary Schoo!, The Knares, Basildon, Essex, SS16 5RU.

* 125 year lease with Essex County Council from 14 Septembar 2012 for Greensted Junior School, Kirby Road, Basildon, Essex, 5§14 1RX.

« 125 year laase with Essex County Council from 06 Octaber 2016 for Ryedene Community Primary School, Rysdene, Basildon, S516 4SY.

* 125 year Isase with Essex County Council fram 07 November 2016 for Northlands Primary Schoal 8 Nursery, Winifred Road, Basildon, $513
3JQ.

* 125 year leasa with Essex County Council from 06 March 2017 For Phoenix Primary School, Leinster Road, Basildon, S515 SNQ.

» 125 year lease with Essex County Council from 01 September 2018 For Greensted Infant School & Nursery, Kirby Road, Basildon, SS14 1RX.
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Naotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

14 Debtors

VAT racoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

1§ Craditors: Amounts failing due within one year

Other creditors )
Accruals and deferred income

Deforred Incomo

Deferred Income as at 1 September 2020
Resources deferred in the year

Amounts released from previous years
Deferred income as at 31 August 2021

2021 2020
€000 £000
57 55
487 570
544 625
2021 2020
£000 £000
3 3
1,357 1,066
1,360 1,068
2021 2020
£000 £000
643 428
661 643
(643) (428)
643

661 -

At the balance sheet date the academy trust had received grant income which relates to the 2021/22 accounting year, therefore this income has

baen deferred.
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

16 Funds

Restrictad ganeral funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
Other OfE grants

Other grants

Local Authoerity Grant
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA and other capitatl items
Leased gifts

Totat rastrictad funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Balance at Gains, Balanca at
1 Septemb ! Ing R LT L and 31 August
2020 Resources Expended Transfers 2021
£000 £000 €000 £000 £000
186 11,028 (8,546) (2,472) 186
. 353 (353) . -
: 1,157 (1,157) - .
- 144 (144) B -
- 422 (422) : ;
. 719 (719) . .
1.268 356 (1,179) 4,083 1,528
3 1,828 (1,829) 2
(9.230) . {1,198) (792) {11,220)
(7.773) ~ 16,007 '(15.54?)‘ . '7 7(727:181)"' (9:494)
13,489 1,637 (653) 1,388 15,862
18,359 - (267) . 18,092
_ . 31,848 1,637 (920) 1,388 33,954,
24,075 17,644 16,487 799) 23,460
768 275 (119) . 944
74863 - 17970 [Aesse) - (793 75,408

General Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy Trust. Under the funding agresmant with the Secretary of State,

the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG the it could carry forward at 31 August 2021,

Other government grants consist of other grants received from Government and Loca! Authority including Early Years Funding, Statemented
Educalional Needs, National College for Teaching and Leaming Schoo! Direct Grant which are used lor resourcing children and supporting

teacher training within the Trust.

Tha transfer of £1,383,000 (2020: £1,015,000) has arisen due to the purchase of fixed assets during the year out of the academies Genera!

Annual Grant (GAG) funding.
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

17 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respact of the preceading perlod is as follows:

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Incoming Resources Losses and 31 August
2019 Resources Exponded Tr fors 2020
. . £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Restrictad general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 174 10,327 {6.608) (1.707) 186
UIFSM - 345 (345) - -
Pupil Pramium - 1,083 (1,083) . .
Teachers pay grant - 137 (137) -
Other DfE grants - 781 (791) - -
Other grants - 1,187 346 (957) 692 1,268
Local Authority Grant 3 1,625 (1,625) - 3
Coronavirus exceptional support . . 66 (65) - -
Pension reserve (7,580) . (957) (693) (9.230)
Other Income - 88 ) (88) - -

(6,216) 14;808 (14,657) {1,708) ~ (7.773) .
Restricted fixed asset funds
DFE/ESFA and other capital items 11,71 1,318 (555) 1,015 13,489
Leased gifts 18,626 - (267) . 18,359

30,337 1.318 X {822) . 1,015. 31,848
Total restricted funds 24,121 ) 16,126 (15,479) - (683) - 24,075
Total unrestricted funds 706, 333 . (251). - 788 .
Total funds ‘24;827 16,459 ~ (15,730) (693) " 24,883
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17 Funds (continued)

Total funds anatysls by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as Total Total
2021 2020
£000 £000

Lee Chapel Primary School 751 749

Greansted Juhior School 276 200

Northlands Primary School and Nursery 732 564

The Phoenix Primary School and Nursery 346 300

Ryedene Primary Schoo! and Nursery 245 137

Greensted Infant School and Nursery KR 258

Central services 9 37 .

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve ’ 2,670 2,245

Restrictad fixed asset fund 33,954 31,848

Pension reserve {11,220) {9,230)

Total funds 25,404 24,863

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational (excluding 2021 2020
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies depraciation) Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Lee Chapel Primary School 3,610 522 40 389 4,561 4,677

Greensted Junior School 668 146 20 185 1,219 1,228

Northlands Primary Schoo! and

Nursery . 2,278 337 35 306 2,956 3,383

The Phoenix Primary Scheo! and

Nursery 2,293 451 a4 391 3,229 3,162

Ryedene Primary School and

Nursery 1,027 162 40 180 1.408 1,308

Greensted Infant School and

Nursery 787 97 15 107 1,006 1,052

Central services = . e - 1,286 1,286 102

10,863 1,715 244 2,844 15,666 14,912
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17 Analysis of net assets between Funds

1

19

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Capital Commitments

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements

Commitments under operating leases

Operating Leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-canceliable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between two and five years

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted Ganeral Asset Total
‘Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 - £000 £000
: - 33,954 33,954
944 3,086 B 4,030
. (1,360) - (1,360)
- (11,220) - {11,220)
044 {9:494) 33.954 _ 25,404
Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
: : 31,842 31,842
788 2,515 6 3,309
. (1,058) - (1,058)
. (9,230) - (8.230)
_ 788 . (7.773) 31.848 24,863
202t 2020
£000 £000
- 418 . 362 .
2021 2020
£000 £000
52 34
112 . 59 .
.. 164
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20 Reconciliation of Nat incoma/(expenditure) to Net Cash Inflow from Cperating Activities

21

22

23

24

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period
Adjusted for:

Depraciation

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Interest receivable

Dafinad benafit pansion scheme cost less contributions payable

Decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Net Cash provided by / (used in) Operating Activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowing
Net cash provided by / (used In) financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA and other capital income
Net Cash provided by / (used in) invesling Activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

Panslon and Simitar Obligations

2021 2020
£000 £000

1,333 729

920 822

(1.637) (1.318)

= (1)

1,198 957

81 51

302 . (150)

T 2397 1,090
2021 2020
£000 £000
2021 2020
£000 £000

- 1

(3.032) (2,437)

1,637 1,318

(1,395) {1:118).
2021 2020
£000 £000

3,486 2,684

3,486, 7,684

The academy trust's employess belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for
academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for norrleachlng staff, which is managed by Essex Pension

Fund. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period endad 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

There ware no outstanding or praepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year. .

Teachaers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014. Membership Is-automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-aut of the TPS foflowing enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions
are credited to the Exchequer. Retiremant and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Pariiament.
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24 Penslon and Similar Obligations (continued)

! of tha P Scheme

The Governmant Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a format actuarial review of the TPS in accardance with the Public Service
Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cast Cap) O_Bn._o:w 2014 v:n__w:mn by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the

feve! of future contributions. Actuarial scheme are on pti about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latast actuariai valuation of the TPS sBm nm:._mn out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the .
Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key of the and ion are:

« employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pay 80.08% ini lavy)

totat scheme llabilities {pansions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service o the effective date

of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the noticnal investments held at the

valustion date) of £1396,100 miflion, glving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to datermine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI.
assumed real rate of return is 2.4% In excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed

to ba 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including eamings grawth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employar's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,469,000 (2020: £1,729,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a dafined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the
scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined bensfit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustes-administered funds. The total contribution made
for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £1,092,000 (2020: £982,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £872,000 (2020: £778,000) and
employees' contributions totalled £220,000 (2020: £204,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.9% - 25.0% for employers and
5.0% - 6.5% for employees.

Parliament has agread, at the request of the Secretary of Stata for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of an academy closure,
outstanding Local Government Penslon Scheme Liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came inlo force on 18
July 2013.
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24 Pension and Simltar Obligations {continued)
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increasa for pensions in payment/infiation
Discount rate lor scheme liabliities

2021

3.90%
2.90%
1.65%

2020

3.27%
2.27%
1.62%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on

retirement age 65 are:

Retining today
Males
Females

Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

Sansitivity analysls

Discount rate +0.1%
Discount rate -0.1%

Long term salary increase +0.1%
Long term salary increase -0.1%

Pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1%
Pension increases and deferred revaluation -0.1%

Adjustments to life expactancy assumptions + 1 year
Adjustmants to life expactancy assumptions - 1 year

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equity Instruments

Gilts

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets
Alternative assets

Other

Total market value of assets

The actual retum on scheme assets was £1,574,000 (2020: £46,000).

Amounts ised in the

t of financial activities:

Current service cost

Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the SOFA

2021 2020
21.60 21.80
2360 23.80
22.90 23.20
25.10 2520
2021 2020
£000 £000

20,237 15,730

21,304 16,561

20,805 16,176

20,722 16,104

21,255 16,521

20,2684 15,767

21,560 16,729

19,977 15,572
2021 2020
£000 - £000

6,109 4,281

240 295

444 387

666 537

266 187

1,058 803

759, 420.

9,543 - 6,910

2021 2020
£000 £000

(1,828) (1,600)

120 120

(263) (255)

(2,076) (1,735)
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Lee Chapel Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 (continued)

24 Ponslon and Similar Obligations (continued)

25

Changes in the fair value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 Septamber
Current service cost
Interest cost

Empioyee contributions
Actuarial loss

Benefits pald

At 31 August

Changes In the fair vatue of Academy’s share of scheme assots:

At 1 September
Interest income
Actuarial (Joss)galn
Employer contributions
Employas contribulions
Benefits paid

At 31 August

Related Party Transactions

Owing to the nature af the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustess belng drawn from local public and private sector

2021 2020
£000 £000

16,140 13,518

1,928 1,600

263 255

221 205

2,361 653

(150) (91)

20,763 16,140
2021 2020
£000 £000

6,910 5,938

120 17

1,569 @an

873 778

221 205

(160) ©1)

9,543 5,910

organigations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trust has an interest. All transactlons invalving such organisations are
conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the trust's financial regulations and normal pracurement procedures.

No related party transactions took place in the psriod of account, other than certain trustees' remuneration and expenses already disclased in

note 9.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 2021 {(continued)

26 Comparative Statemant of Financial Activities

4

and ts from:
Donations and capital grants

Transfer from Local Authority on conversion

Charitable activitias:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations

Other trading actlvities
Investments

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

Academy trust educalional operations
Total
Not income / (expenditure)
Transfers between funds
Other recognised gains/(losses):
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined
benefit pension schemes
Net movament in funds
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carrisd forward

Restrlm& Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total

Funds Funds 2020

£000 £000 £000
54 284 1,318 1,656
76 14,506 . 14,582
202 18 - 220
1 . . 1
333 14,808 7318, 16,359
251 14,657 822 15,730
51 14,657 827 15,730
82 151 496 728
:, (1.015) . 1,015 -
. (693) . L : (693)
82 (1,557) 1,511 38
706 (6,216) 30,337 24,827
788 - 7773] 37,848 " 24,863
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